
Council Meeting Agenda   January 10, 2023 
  Page 1 of 4 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
 

       January 10, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
 

AGENDA  
 

Topic: Regular Council Meeting 
Time:  January 10, 2023 5:30 P.M.   
 Council will re-convene into Open Session at 6:30 P.M.  
  

23-10  1st resolution 
2023- 05 1st by-law 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND/OR PERSONAL INTEREST AND 
GENERAL NATURE THEREOF  

 

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

5. CLOSED SESSION 
 

5.1 Minutes of the Closed Sessions of Council 
5.2 Litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative 

tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board; pursuant to Ontario 
Municipal Act, Section 239(2)(e) – matters subject to solicitor/client 
privileges. 

5.3 Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including Municipal or 
local board employees, pursuant to Ontario Municipal Act, Section 
239(2)(b) – Staffing    

 

6. CALL TO ORDER – OPEN SESSION (6:30PM) 
 

7. RESPECT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT DECLARATION 
 

We would like to begin by acknowledging that the land on which we gather is the 
traditional territory of the Anishnaabe and the Mississauga People  

 

8. ROLL CALL  
 

9. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND/OR PERSONAL INTEREST AND 
GENERAL NATURE THEREOF 

 

10. PUBLIC MEETING  
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Agenda   January 10, 2023 
  Page 2 of 4 
 

11. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

11.1 Carol Buckingham and Mary-Ann Beck on behalf of the McKellar 
Sunshine Seniors & The McKellar Seniors Club regarding supporting two 
(2) Card Groups 

  

12. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
  

12.1 Proposed Amendment to Roads Policy, Township Staff Labour Charges  
 

13. MOTION TO REVIEW A PREVIOUS MOTION  
 

14. ADOPTION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 
 

14.1  December 6, 2022 Regular Meeting of Council Minutes, December 15, 
2022 Special Meeting of Council Minutes and December 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting of Council Minutes  

  

15. PLANNING MATTERS     
   

16. COMMITTEE/BOARD MINUTES WITH RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 
 APPROVAL 
 

16.1 Township of McKellar Recreation Committee Minutes of the December 8, 
2022 Meeting 

16.2 McKellar Historical Committee Draft Minutes of the November 2, 2022 
Meeting  

 

17. STAFF REPORTS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS FOR APPROVAL 
 

 17.1 FD-2022-06 Report, Month End Status Update – November 2022  
 17.2 McKellar Market Yearend Market Report 
 17.3 Consent Application B35/2022 (St. Julien) Conditions Met 
 17.4 FD-2022-07 Post Fire Report – Maplewood Road  
 17.5 Consent Application B19/2022 (Colbourne) Conditions Met 
 17.6 Accounts Payable Preliminary Cheque Report December 2022 
 

18. MAYOR’S REPORT 
  

19. CORRESPONDENCE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

19.1 Town of Parry Sound Resolutions 2022-157 and 2022-161, Appointments 
to Boards, Commissions and Committees 

19.2 Email dated December 13, 2022 from Ohad Slama regarding Russell 
Christie LLP Invoice Dispute 

19.3 OMERS, Letter from Vice President regarding Changes to Eligibility 
Requirements for Pension Enrollment  

19.4 West Parry Sound District Museum 2023 Contribution Request 
19.5 Township of the Archipelago, Resolution No. 22-195, Securing Canada’s 

$1 Billion Investment in a Strengthened Freshwater Action Plan 
19.6 Belvedere Heights Board of Management Update for Owner 

Municipalities dated January 3, 2023 



Council Meeting Agenda   January 10, 2023 
  Page 3 of 4 
 

19.7 District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board Resolutions 
Nominating Members to Board for Area 3 

19.8  Whitestone McKellar Lions Club 2022 Yearly Report 
 

20. MOTION AND NOTICE OF MOTION 
 

20.1 Resolution to Declare Part of the Original Road Allowance between Plan 
275 Block A and Con 6 Lot 29, Township of McKellar, District of Parry 
Sound (known as Hardie Crescent) Surplus Land 

20.2 To Appoint Suzanne Poff to the McKellar Township Public Library Board 
20.3 Rename Island View Lane (Formerly Fire Route 102) to Madigan Lane  
20.4 Review of the West Parry Sound Recreation & Cultural Centre Joint 

Municipal Services Board Agreement  
20.5 Recreation, Historical and Sesquicentennial Committee Surplus Funds to 

Reserves  
20.6 Fire Department 2022 Budget Surplus Funds to Reserves 
20.7 Application for (MTO) Entrance Permit at 701 Hwy 124 (Municipal 

Complex) Additional Entrance to be Located South of 697 Hwy 124 
20.8 Firefighter Appointment – Deanna McEwen  
20.9 Firefighter Promotion to Captain – Chris Somers 
20.10 Direction to Treasurer to Prepare a Fees & Charges By-law for Proposed 

Upgrades to Deerfield Road, Bay Drive and Fire Routes 152, 152A & 
152B 

20.11 Direction to Staff to Prepare a Report to Council Investigating Alternative 
Internet Service Providers for the Municipal Building Complex   

20.12 Fire Department Reserve Funds for Purchase of Bunker Gear & PPE 
20.13 Flag Policy 

 

21.  BY-LAWS  

21.1 2023-05 Being a By-law to Amend the Zoning By-law (Hardie) 
 21.2  2023-06 Being a By-law to Set Tax Ratios for 2023 

21.3 2023-07 Being a By-law to Authorize the Borrowing of Money to Meet 
Current Expenditures of the Council of the Township of McKellar  

21.4 2023-08 Procedural By-law  
 

22. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

23. NEW BUSINESS 
  

24. PUBLIC NOTICES, ANNOUNCEMENTS, INQUIRIES AND REPORTS BY 
 COUNCIL MEMBERS  

 

25. CONSENT AGENDA – CORRESPONDENCE  
 

 25.1 City of Toronto, Update on Bill 23 – More Homes Built Faster, 2022 
25.2 Letter dated November 25, 2022 Thanking Township for Donation to the 

Branch Poppy Fund 
25.3 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing, Updates on Recent Legislation 

and Regulatory Changes Relating to Bills 109, 23 & 3  
 



Council Meeting Agenda   January 10, 2023 
  Page 4 of 4 
 

25.4 Crime Stoppers, January is Crime Stoppers Month 
25.5 Township of Carling, Resolution No. 22-104 to Support the Creation of 

the Ontario Provincial Police Detachment Boards 
25.6 Final 2022 Manitouwabing Lake Environment Report (Watermark 

Removed) 
25.7 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing, Update on Key Initiatives for 

Home Homes Built Faster Act, 2022  
 

26. QUESTION/COMMENT PERIOD (RELATED TO ITEMS ON AGENDA) 
 

27. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 
 

 27.1 By-law 2023-09 - Confirming the Proceedings of Council 
  

28. ADJOURNMENT 



Item 11.1







Item 12.1

























 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
Mayor Moore called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Moore took Roll Call. 
 
Present:  Mayor David Moore 
  Councillors Morley Haskim, Mike Kekkonen, Debbie Zulak  
Staff:  Clerk, Ina Watkinson 
  Deputy Clerk/Planning Assistant, Karlee Britton 

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND/OR PERSONAL INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
THEREOF 

There were no conflicts of interest declared. 
 

Moved by:  Councillor Haskim 
Seconded by: Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-503 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby approve the Agenda for this Regular Meeting of Council as presented. 

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak  
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-504 Be It Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar, 
pursuant to the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, as amended, move into closed session at  
5:33 p.m. to discuss the following items; 
6.1 Minutes of Closed Session 
6.2 Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including Municipal or local 

board employees – 239(2)(b) – staffing 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-505 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby reconvene into open session of Council at 6:26 p.m. 

                       Carried 
Nick Ryeland entered the meeting.  
 
SWEARING IN CEREMONY  
 
Under Section 232 of the Municipal Act, 2001 by the Clerk/Administrator. Declaration of Office and 
Oath of Allegiance was taken by Nick Ryeland for the 2022-2026 term of Council. 
 
Mayor Moore called the meeting to order for open session at 6:30 p.m. Zoom Meeting commenced.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Moore took Roll Call. 
 
Present:  Mayor David Moore 
  Councillors Morley Haskim, Mike Kekkonen, Nick Ryeland, Debbie Zulak 
Staff:  Clerk, Ina Watkinson 
  Administrative Assistant, Mary Smith 
  Greg Gostick, Director of Operations 
  Roshan Kantiya, Treasurer  
  Deputy Clerk/Planning Assistant, Karlee Britton 

Item 14.1



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 2 of 9 

 

  
RESPECT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT DECLARATION 
 

We would like to begin by acknowledging that the land on which we gather is traditional unceded 
territory of the Anishnaabe and the Mississauga People. 

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND/OR PERSONAL INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
THEREOF 

There were no conflicts of interest declared. 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Haskim 
Seconded by:  Councillor Ryeland 
 

22-506 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby accept the reports, recommendations and directions arising from the closed 
session held December 6, 2022. 

 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-507 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the deputation from Jennifer Ghent-Fuller, Chair of the Lake 
Stewardship and Environmental Committee and Axy Leighl.  

 
Carried 

Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-508 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby receive the deputation from Brad Roberts regarding interest in purchasing the 

road allowance known as Hardie Crescent.  

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-509 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby approve the Minutes of the November 15, 2022, Special (Inaugural) Meeting of 

Council.  

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-510 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby receive the Correspondence, Draft By-law, Draft Consent Agreement and 

Minutes of Settlement for the Salway Appeal with the Ontario Land Tribunal (OLT); and 

Further Council directs staff to arrange a meeting with the Township lawyer and 

Township Planner to address concerns regarding the consent agreement.   

   Carried 
 
Council asked if there were questions/comments from the audience. Ted Davidson and Reg Moore 
spoke regarding the Salway appeal via Zoom.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 3 of 9 

 

 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-511 Be it Resolved That the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does hereby receive 

the Minutes from the October 13, 2022 meeting and the draft minutes of the November 

10, 2022 meeting of the Lake Stewardship and Environmental Committee.   

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak  
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-512 Be it Resolved That the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does hereby receive 

the Minutes from the October 13, 2022 meeting of the Parry Sound District Social 

Services Administration Board Meeting.   

   Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Haskim  
Seconded by:  Councillor Ryeland 
 

22-513 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby direct staff to inquire with MTO, moving the “50KM Ahead” sign from the 
current location at Manitouwabing Lake, west to the area of McKellar Marine and/or 
Springhill Road and the “50KM” sign from the McKellar sign at Minerva Park to the 
west side of F.R. #152. 

  Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-514 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby accept the Tender Bid from Freightliner North Bay for the supply of (1) Medium 

Duty Truck Cab, Chassis, Hopper Spreader, Reversible Plow and Low Mount Front 

Harness in the amount of $251,741.00 plus HST of $32,726.33 for a total of 

$284,467.33. 

   Carried 
Greg Gostick left the meeting.  
 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-515 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby receive Report T-2022-5 2022 Capital Budget Amendment; and Further 

accepts the transfer of $428,435.01 from Reserves to the following capital budget line 

items:  

1) $125,000.00 from Working Fund Reserve, $25,000.00 from Infrastructure Asset 

Management Reserve and $185,000.00 from Roads Vehicle Reserve for a total of 

$335,000.00 for the purchase and installation of Inholmes Bridge; and 

2) $81,357.12 from the Fire Department Vehicle Reserve to fund the purchase of (1) 

RAM 1500 QRC-150 Pick-up Truck (Rescue 1) for the Fire Department; and 

3) $12,077.89 from Fire Department Vehicle Reserve to fund the purchase and 

installation of (1) Weil McLean Ultra 155CT -155KBTU Watt Boiler with 3” Vent for 

Fire Station 2.  

         Carried 
 
 
 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 4 of 9 

 

 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-516 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby accept the Accounts Payable Preliminary Cheque Run Report for November, 

2022. 

         Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-517 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby receive the resignation of Adriana Koufis from the McKellar Township Public 

Library Board and thank her for her time and dedication to the Board. 

         Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-518 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby receive Resolution No. 2022-119 from the Municipality of McDougall; and That 

the Township of McKellar has also circulated the appointment of Councillor Nick 

Ryeland to the Parry Sound District Emergency Medical Service Advisory Committee; 

and Further the Council of the Township of McKellar looks forward to hearing from the 

Township of Carling and the Municipality of Whitestone in Support of Councillor 

Ryeland’s appointment to the committee. 

         Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-519 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby receive Resolution No. 2022-116 from the Municipality of McDougall; and That 

the Township of McKellar has also circulated the appointment of Councillor Morley 

Haskim to the Parry Sound District Social Services Administration Board where two 

members are to be appointed; and Further the Council of the Township of McKellar 

looks forward to hearing from the Schedule 4, Area 3 Municipalities (Township of 

Carling, Municipality of Whitestone) in Support of Councillor Haskim’s appointment to 

the board; and further that the board recognize that the Township of McKellar has not 

been a representative of the Board since the 1999 to 2002 term of Council. 

   Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-520 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the Aquatic Environmental Report of Manitouwabing Lake from the 
Georgian Bay Mnidoo Gamii Biosphere. 

         Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-521 Be It Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive Township of the Archipelago Resolution No. 22-155; and  
 
Whereas Ontario passed the Comprehensive Ontario Police Services Act, 2019 (Bill 
68) and established the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019 (CSPA), which, 
once in force, will repeal the Police Services Act, 1990 (PSA); and  
 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 
Whereas Section 67 of the CSPA required there be an Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) 
Detachment Board for each detachment of the OPP that provides policing in a 
municipality or First Nation community; and  
 
Whereas the Ministry of the Solicitor General (Ministry) has developed a framework 
which allows affected Municipalities and First Nations the flexibility to establish an OPP 
Detachment Board that reflects community and local needs; and  
 
Whereas the Ministry has asked that Municipalities and First Nations within an OPP 
Detachment area to work together to determine the composition of their OPP 
Detachment Board, and the manner in which they will submit their proposal to the 
Ministry; and  
 
Whereas Members of the existing West Parry Sound District Community Policing 
Advisory Committee have indicated interest in establishing an OPP Detachment 
Board, which will represent the West Parry Sound Municipalities and First Nations;  
 
Now Therefore Be It Resolved that Council of the Township of McKellar hereby 
supports the OPP Detachment Board Proposal that was submitted to the Province of 
Ontario by the Municipality of McDougall CPAC representative, which represents all 
seven of the West Parry Sound Area Municipalities and Henvey Inlet First Nation. And 
Further Be It Resolved That this resolution be forwarded to all the West Parry Sound 
Municipalities and Henvey Inlet First Nation. 

 

         Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-522 Be It Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the Township of the Archipelago Resolution No. 22-177; and  

 
Whereas the Council for the Township of McKellar recognizes the need for additional 
affordable and attainable housing locally, provincially, and nationally, and supports 
provincial measures to increase the supply of housing to meet this growing need; And  
 
Whereas a strategic priority for the Township of McKellar is to protect and preserve 
the natural environment, inland lakes, and watershed areas, through responsible land 
use planning; And  
 
Whereas the proposed changes to the Planning Act limits the Township’s ability to 
preserve and protect the environment, by eliminating the ability to use site plan control 
within environmentally sensitive, waterfront areas throughout the Township; And  
 
Whereas the natural environment is an economic driver of the Township of McKellar 
and the Parry Sound District and the proposed changes, if implemented, will cause 
significant damage to the local economy; And  
 
Whereas the proposed changes to limit the requirement for public engagement and 
remove the ability for third party appeals, eliminates the capacity for the community to 
be involved in open and transparent planning processes;  
 
Now Therefore Be It Resolved the Council of the Township of McKellar does hereby 
request for the Province to reconsider the proposed changes within Bill 23, that destroy 
the existing regulations and tools that help to protect and preserve the natural 
environment within the sensitive, rural, waterfront areas, including the elimination of 
the use of Site Plan Control for residential development with less than 10 units and the 
removal of species at risk and wetland complexing criteria from the Ontario Wetland  



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 
Evaluation System; And Further Be It Resolved that Council for the Township of 
McKellar respectfully requests the Province to reconsider these proposed changes to 
the Planning Act and the Ontario Land Tribunal, which remove the opportunity for 
public input and limit public involvement in planning processes.  
 
Be It Finally Resolved that the Council for the Corporation of the Township of 
McKellar directs staff to submit this resolution to the Honourable Minister Steve Clark,  
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing; the Honourable David Piccini, Minister of 
Environment, Conservation and Parks; the Honourable Graydon Smith, Minister of  
Natural Resources and Forestry; the Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario; the 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario. 

 

         Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-523 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the Township of Carling’s Committee and Board appointments; and  
That the Township of McKellar has also circulated the appointments to the Belvedere 
Heights Home for the Aged Board of Management, the Parry Sound District 
Emergency Medical Service Advisory Committee and the Parry Sound District Social 
Services Administration Board; and Further the Council of the Township of McKellar 
looks forward to hearing from the area Municipalities in support of the Township of 
McKellar members of Council’s appointment to the above named committees. 

  
         Carried 

Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-524 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the letter dated November 21, 2022 from Steve Macdonell, President of 
the MLCA in regards to Council’s decision to dissolve the Ad Hoc Committee for Short 
Term Rentals. 

Carried 
Council asked if there were questions/comments from the audience. Doug Hunt and Axy Leighl spoke 
regarding Council’s decision to dissolve the Ad Hoc Committee for Short Term Rentals.  
 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-525 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the Township of Seguin Resolution No. 2022-375 to support the 
appointment of Jamie McGarvey to the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound 
District Health Unit. 

 

         Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-526 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby appoint the following persons to the McKellar Township Public Library Board: 
Debbie Woods (Chair), Dianne Thompson, Lynne Aylsworth and Jeanette Clements. 

 
    Carried 

 
 
 
 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-527 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby appoint Councillor Nick Ryeland to the West Parry Sound District Museum 
Board. 

        Deferred 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-528 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby support the nomination of Jamie McGarvey as representative on the Board of 
Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit for the 2023-2026 Term. 

        
Carried 

Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-529 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive verbal comments from Councillor Haskim regarding the siding and 
windows project on Hemlock Church; and Further direct the Chief Building Official to 
determine the scope of work to have the siding and windows completed; and Further, if 
deemed necessary, direct staff to prepare a Tender to complete the project. 

    Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-530 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby appoint Councillor Debbie Zulak as an alternate representative of Council to 
the West Parry Sound Recreation and Cultural Centre Board in the case of Mayor 
David Moore sending his regrets to the Board. 

        Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-531 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby declare Fire Department Vehicle (2008 Ford CTV E350) ‘Rescue 1’ surplus; 
and Further direct staff to Tender for the Sale of the Vehicle. 

   

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-532 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby extend the curfew of this meeting by 30 minutes to 10:30 p.m. 

   

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-533 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the amendments to the Procedural By-law; and Further That members 
of Council and staff review the amendments and provide comment; and Further That a 
By-law to amend Schedule ‘A’ of By-law 2021-28 (the Procedural By-law) is brought 
forth to Council at the December 20, 2022 meeting of Council. 

                       Carried 
 
 
 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 8 of 9 

 

 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-534 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the verbal discussion and comments regarding the number of proposed 
swimming lanes to be built at the West Parry Sound Recreational and Cultural Centre 
pool.   

                       Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Haskim 
Seconded by:  Councillor Ryeland 
 

22-535 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby extend the curfew of this meeting a further 30 minutes from 10:30 p.m to 11:00 
p.m. 

   

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-536 Whereas the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar entered into an 
agreement with the collective ‘Municipalities’ titled the “West Parry Sound Recreation 
and Cultural Centre Joint Municipal Service Board Agreement” on the 10th day of 
September, 2021, and  
 
Whereas the Township of McKellar’s solicitor was not consulted upon the wording of 
said agreement prior to its signing; and WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of 
the Township of McKellar now desires a legal interpretation of said document, 
including any financial commitments, for budgetary purposes, and other responsibilities 
moving forward;  
 
Now Therefore Be It Resolved THAT the Council of the Corporation of the Township 
of McKellar does hereby authorize the Clerk/Administrator or Council Designate to 
immediately consult the municipal solicitor to determine the extent of said obligations. 

                     
   Carried 

Moved by:  Councillor Haskim 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-537 Whereas the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar passed 
Resolution No. 22-494 at the Special (Inaugural) Council Meeting on Tuesday, 
November 15, 2022, wherein the Clerk/Administrator or Council designate was 
authorized to immediately contact the Township’s solicitor to prepare an RFP for a 
forensic audit of the Township of McKellar’s financial accounts for the previous term of 
Council; and  
 
Whereas the Township’s solicitor responded via email on November 23, 2022, to the 
Clerk/Administrator that he does not ‘typically draft RFPs or other procurement 
documents for municipalities from scratch’ but that he would ‘simply provide input and 
recommendations on drafts of the RFP…’; and WHEREAS time is of the essence;  
 
Now Therefore Be It Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township 
of McKellar does hereby authorize the Mayor as Council designate in co-operation with 
the Clerk/Administrator to contact other solicitors or companies that have experience in 
preparing such an RFP;  
 
 
 
 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 6, 2022 

 
Page 9 of 9 

 

 
And Further Be It Resolved That a report regarding comparative costs and 
procedures be presented to Council in the immediate future with anticipated further 
action. 

                       Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-538 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby request the West Parry Sound Recreation and Cultural Centre Board to 
immediately open all meetings to the public and in person attendance also by zoom  
link; and further that this Resolution be forwarded to all the area Municipalities on the 
board. 

                       Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim  
 

22-539 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby receive the consent agenda for correspondence. 

                       Carried 
QUESTION/COMMENT PERIOD (RELATED TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA) 
 
Michel Richard commented on the length of the meeting, the lack of detail in the Director of 
Operations comments to Council and asked how many proposals were submitted for the Public Works 
Truck Tender.  
 
Moved by:  Councillor Haskim 
Seconded by:  Councillor Ryeland 
 

22-540 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby give By-law No. 2022-61, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council, 
a First and Second reading; And further Read a Third time and Passed in Open 
Council this 6th day of December, 2022. 

                       Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-541 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar 
adjourn this meeting at 10:54 p.m. to meet again on December 20, 2022, or at the call 
of the Mayor. 

                       Carried 
            

 
 
 
 
____________________________________             ____________________________________ 
David Moore, Mayor     Ina Watkinson, Clerk 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 15, 2022 

 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Mayor Moore called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Moore took Roll Call. 
 
Present:  Mayor David Moore 
  Councillors Mike Kekkonen, Debbie Zulak  
Regrets:  Councillor Morley Haskim  
Staff:  Deputy Clerk/Planning Assistant, Karlee Britton 
Guests:  Jennifer Biggar, Russell Christie LLP 
  David Welwood, JL Richards & Associates Ltd.  
  Marilyn Cameron, JL Richards & Associates Ltd.  
 
RESPECT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT DECLARATION 
 
We would like to begin by acknowledging that the land on which we gather is traditional unceded 
territory of the Anishnaabe and the Mississauga People. 

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND/OR PERSONAL INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
THEREOF 

There were no conflicts of interest declared. 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by: Councillor Zulak 
 

22-542 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby approve the Agenda for this Special Meeting of Council as presented. 

 
Carried 

Moved by:  Councillor Zulak  
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-543 Be It Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar, 
pursuant to the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, as amended, move into closed session at  
1:07 p.m. to discuss the following items; 
6.1 Litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative 

tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board; pursuant to Ontario 
Municipal Act, Section 239(2)(e) – potential litigation. 

Carried 
Councillor Nick Ryeland entered the meeting via Zoom at 11:11pm. 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-544 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby reconvene into open session of Council at 1:49 p.m. 

  
Division Vote  

 YEAS:  Councillor Kekkonen, Councillor Ryeland, Councillor Zulak, Mayor Moore 
 NAYS: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 ABSENT: Councillor Haskim 

                       Carried 
 
 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 15, 2022 

 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-545 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby accept the reports, recommendations and directions arising from the closed 
session held December 15, 2022. 
 
Division Vote  

 YEAS:  Councillor Kekkonen, Councillor Ryeland, Councillor Zulak, Mayor Moore 
 NAYS: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 ABSENT: Councillor Haskim 

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Zulak 
Seconded by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
 

22-546 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby give By-law No. 2022-62, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council, 
a First and Second reading; And further Read a Third time and Passed in Open 
Council this 15th day of December, 2022. 
 
Division Vote  

 YEAS:  Councillor Kekkonen, Councillor Ryeland, Councillor Zulak, Mayor Moore 
 NAYS: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 ABSENT: Councillor Haskim 
 

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-547 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar 

adjourn this meeting at 1:52 p.m. to meet again on December 20, 2022, or at the call of 

the Mayor.  

Division Vote  
 YEAS:  Councillor Kekkonen, Councillor Ryeland, Councillor Zulak, Mayor Moore 
 NAYS: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 ABSENT: Councillor Haskim 

Carried 
 

            
 
 
 
 
____________________________________             ____________________________________ 
David Moore, Mayor     Ina Watkinson, Clerk 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 20, 2022 

 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Mayor Moore called the meeting to order at 4:32 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Moore took Roll Call. 
 
Present:  Mayor David Moore 
  Councillors Morley Haskim, Mike Kekkonen, Nick Ryeland, Debbie Zulak  
Staff:  Deputy Clerk/Planning Assistant, Karlee Britton 
  Clerk/Administrator, Ina Watkinson 
   
DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND/OR PERSONAL INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
THEREOF 
 
There were no conflicts of interest declared. 
 

Moved by:  Councillor Haskim 
Seconded by: Councillor Ryeland 
 

22-548 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby approve the Agenda for this Regular Meeting of Council as presented. 

Carried 
Moved by:  Councillor Haskim 
Seconded by:  Councillor Ryeland 
 

22-549 Be It Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar, 
pursuant to the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, as amended, move into closed session at  
4:33 p.m. to discuss the following items; 

  5.1 Minutes of the Closed Sessions of Council 
5.2 Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including Municipal or local 

board employees, pursuant to Ontario Municipal Act, Section 239(2)(b) – Fire 
Department Recruitment & Staffing   

5.3 An ongoing investigation respecting the municipality, a local board or a 
municipally-controlled corporation by the Ombudsman appointed under the 
Ombudsman Act, an Ombudsman referred to in subsection 223.13 (1) of this 
Act, or the investigator referred to in subsection 239.2 (1). 2014, c. 13, Sched. 
9, s. 22. – Sec. 239(3)(b) – investigative review of complaint re Council 
meetings held: August 24, 2021; August 31, 2021; September 9, 2021; April 
12, 2022 

Carried 
 
By-law Enforcement Officer, Chris Everitt and Treasurer, Roshan Kantiya entered the meeting for their 
respective items on the agenda.  
 
Moved by:  Councillor Haskim 
Seconded by:  Councillor Ryeland  
 

22-550 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby reconvene into open session of Council at 5:29 p.m. 

                       Carried 
 
Mayor Moore called the meeting to order for open session at 5:31 p.m. Zoom Meeting commenced.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Moore took Roll Call. 
 
 



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
Council Meeting Minutes                                                                                           December 20, 2022 

 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Present:  Mayor David Moore 
  Councillors Morley Haskim, Mike Kekkonen, Nick Ryeland, Debbie Zulak 
Staff:  Deputy Clerk/Planning Assistant, Karlee Britton 
  Clerk/Administrator, Ina Watkinson  
  Administrative Assistant, Mary Smith 
      
RESPECT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT DECLARATION 
 

We would like to begin by acknowledging that the land on which we gather is traditional unceded 
territory of the Anishnaabe and the Mississauga People. 

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND/OR PERSONAL INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
THEREOF 

There were no conflicts of interest declared. 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland  
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim  
 

22-551 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby accept the reports, recommendations and directions arising from the closed 
session held December 20, 2022. 

 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-552 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 
hereby move into a Public Meeting at 5:32 p.m. 

 
Carried 

PUBLIC MEETING  
 
Moved by:  Councillor Ryeland 
Seconded by:  Councillor Haskim 
 

22-553 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar does 

hereby receive the Zoning Amendment Application, Planning Report prepared by JL 

Richards and Draft By-law 2022-64 for the Hardie planning application.    

Carried 
 
Reg Moore spoke not for or against the application. He asked why there was a reference to Map No. 
129 located on the draft Zoning By-law Amendment.  
 
Janice and Vic Skot spoke not for or against the application. Janice asked if the properties would have 
deeded access to Manitouwabing Lake and if only a single-family dwelling would be permitted on 
each lot. Their concerns were if the application would change the landscape of the area.     
 
Moved by:  Councillor Kekkonen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Zulak 
 

22-554 Be it Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar 
adjourn this meeting at 6:24 p.m. to meet again on January 10, 2023, or at the call of 
the Mayor, due to poor internet connection and intermittent audio.    

Carried 
             

____________________________________             ____________________________________ 
David Moore, Mayor     Ina Watkinson, Clerk 



Item 16.1





Item 16.2





Prepared for: Council

Township of McKellar
Staff Report

Department: Fire Department

Agenda Date: December 20, 2022 Report No: FD-2022-6

Subject: Month End Status Updates - November 2022

For the month of November 2022, the Township of McKellar Fire Department responded to a
total of 17 calls consisting of:

7 Medical calls
10 Fire calls (Fire, MVC, Assistance)

1 Time we activated Mutual Aid

Tanker 1 has returned to full service, issues have been resolved. Rescue 1 has been put into
service and we are currently using a temporary racking system for equipment to allow us to

evaluate different equipment configurations within the truck and choose what will work best.
Full evaluation of our Personal Protective Equipment took place during our post fire evaluation
and discussion on Tuesday November 29.

Station health is good, Huronia has come through and completed the necessary inspections.
Station 1 has passed, Station 2 having been neglected for some time required the purchase and
placement of new extinguishers to meet code. Morrows Plumbing has been approached to

provide regular scheduled maintenance to help avoid catastrophic failures going forward.

Home Safe Home McKellar has kicked off, with the expected slow start we are still pleased to

announce that we have sent a crew to our first public request for assistance, at which we
provided public education and replaced batteries in existing detectors. We also provided and

installed at no charge 1 co and 1 smoke detector to bring the resident up to code. We have also
been able to provide detectors and education on two other occasions while responding to

medical incidents and the appropriate opportunity presented itself.

Page 1 of 2

Item 17.1





 

 

 

Welcome to our Yearend Market Report 

We started off the year with two obstacles to address– (1) A draft proposal by 

Mayor Hopkins presented at the March 22,’22 Committee of the Whole to 

relocate the market to the Community Centre in 2023, and (2) A Complaint by 

a concerned member of the public regarding market parking. With these two 

issues hovering over our season, we immediately went to work. To address 

the draft proposed market relocation a social media post was created on Fa-

cebook titled “Have Your Say” requesting feedback from our community 

members, market visitors and vendors. It became very clear that folks were in 

favour of the market remaining at the park. It should be noted The McKellar 

Market has been operating on the waterfront at Minerva Park for over a dec-

ade, without incident and hopes to continue this tradition for many years to 

come.  

To address the parking concerns, Director of Operations, Greg Gostick, for-

warded an email from Ryan Herbrand,  MTO on April 6th, 2022 informing the 

market that a parking concern had been brought forth late summer 2021 by a 

member of the public. In order for the market to open this year at Minerva 

Park a MTO Building and Land Use Permit was required and the market had to 

meet eleven permit conditions. Further to these conditions and permit re-

quirements, permission was required by council. On April 8th, we received 

councils blessings to proceed with the MTO Permit Application and started 

the process to meet the permit demands.  All venues attracting large crowds 

along a King’s Highway require a permit and parking is prohibited. Thankfully, 

we were able to adjust quickly and implement necessary requirements. 

We would like to thank Ryan Herbrand, MTO for his guidance through this 

process and look forward to working with the MTO 

and our newly appointed council in the future.  

Reopening Canada Day, Saturday, July 1st, 2023,  

Minerva Park, McKellar  

Watch the township website for market updates  

2022 Market Report 

Item 17.2



LOST  & FOUND 

Found at the market 
this summer 
2023 150th  

Calendar.  If this be-

longs to you please call 

7 0 5 . 7 7 3 . 9 5 7 8  

Week Four, July  23rd, Lakeside Sweets Candy Kabobs definitely were a 

hot commodity. Sarah was kept busy serving customers. Heart of Yolk’s 

famous Banty Chicken “Loulou” exclusive to the market was back ham-

ming it up for our visitors. The Dusty Troll returned to the market with 

handmade wooden toys and the Library offered a chance to win a “All 

Canadian, Eh” gift basket full of goodies from Middle River Farm. 

Week Five, July 30th, the Rogerson’s introduced Mrs. Wilson, Parry 

Sound Harvest Share’s representative and entertained us with Celtic and 

Country music. The McKellar Fire Firefighters Association collected non-

perishable food items and personal products for Parry Sound Harvest 

Share– 358 lbs. of food and $271.75 was raised. Our wee market visitors 

were invited to dress up in bunker gear and have their photo taken with 

Smokey Bear and Sparky the Fire Dog. Several Carbon Monoxide Detec-

tors were donated by the Hawkins Gignac Foundation and raffled off.  

The MLCA’s booth sold “No Wake” signs, memberships and handed out 

free educational material.  

Market Highlights 

Week One, July 2nd, Opening 

Day, Canada Day weekend, Sum-

mer 2022 certainly was one to 

remember- we enjoyed 10 weeks 

of beautiful weather. We opened 

with over 60+ vendors and a park 

full of happy shoppers and ven-

dors. Musicians, Phi Jefkins and 

The Arbour’s live performances 

added to our Canada Day celebra-

tion. The Whitestone McKellar 

Lions Club assisted with parking, 

handed out Canada Day Swag, 

picked up supplies and assisted 

our vendors. The waterfront was 

filled with watercrafts. We would 

like to thank our community part-

ners Scooby’s Great Eats and the 

Manitouwabing Outpost for dis-

playing our signs. 

Week Two, July 9th, we wel-

comed back several familiar fac-

es, Bruce Penny returned with his 

popular wood carvings and David 

Thornborrow with his beautiful 

handmade turned bowls. 

New to the market this year Car-

ling Embroidery, Katariina Crafts, 

Samantha’s Homemade Signs and 

Sprinkle ’n’ Dash. Sprinkle ’n’ 

Dash’s Funnel and Cake Cups 

were a market favourite. John 

from Liberation Tours dropped by 

offering tours to the Canadian 

Battlefields.   

Week Three, July 16th, Blue Pan-

da Lemonade returned with their 

famous Lemonade and Phil 

Jefkins and The Arbour's sweet 

tunes filled the park. Larry Kilian 

joined us with his whimsical in-

spired greeting cards and the 

McKellar 150th booth was busy 

selling t-shirts and flags pro-

moting the 150 celebration next 

year.  

2 



T H A N K  Y O U   

TO OUR VENDORS FOR A WONDERFUL SEASON!! 

 

All Summer Scapes Gardens and Gifts, Attilio’s Fine Foods, Paws 

of Georgian Bay, Adventure Forge, Audacine Inc (Blink –North) 

Photography, Aligned Crystals, Sugar Lake Rustic Furniture, Beck-

ner Wood Products, Birch Farms, Carmal Candles, Carling Embroi-

dery, Crafted In My Hands, CJ’s Surf ’n Turf, Carole’s Crystals, 

Cottage Country Crocheting & Crafts, Cottage Crafts Works, Mari-

on Cooper, Canvas By Cameo, Dellzines, Kim Duffy, Desmarais Art 

& Jewelry, Elle Zed Creations, Foster’s Farm, Fizzies ’n’ Wicks, For 

the Bees, Glassworks by Wendy, Sandy Harvey, Huggables by 

Carole, Baking by Brenda, Heart of Yolk, Happy Tummy, Judy’s 

Butter Tarts, Leslie Knighton, Katariina Crafts, Larry Kilian Photog-

raphy, Liette Vanniekerk, Liberation Tours, Lasting Impressions, 

McKellar 150th Committee, Muskoka Granola, Boho Thro, Moon 

River Apothecary, Thom Morrissey Photography, MLCA Assoc. 

Muddy Handshake Pottery, Northern Whimsies, Natures Way 

Essentials, Northwood Carvings, Old World Woodland Art, Pivot 

Coffee, Crosswind Creations, LakLife, Bruce Penny, Purple Owl 

Handmade, PJ’s Meats, Market on the Move, Pete’s Pens, Rebel 

Spark, Sara Rogers Poetry, Redhead Blooming Beds, River Made 

Farmstead, Rosewell Woodworking, Rural Root Apothecary, Savi 

Designs by Lina, SunSkye Stitchery, Scentsy by Stephanie Earley, 

Sugar Lake Crafts, Sprinkle ‘n’ Dash, Sandra’s Sassy Stitches, Sun-

set Gourmet by Jessica, Spiral Stained Glass, Stamped Frosting, 

Custom Flies, The Scrunchie Sisters, The Wooden Window, 

Heather’s 31 Gems, Temple Dog Rescue, David Thornborrow, 

Token of Virtue, Aaro Tonnis, Lakeside Sweets, Samantha’s 

Homemade Signs, Wood + Heart Design Co., Yaycations, Yase 

Handmade, Moose On The Loose, Permafrost Snacks. 

Visit our vendors on-line through their Website,  
Facebook and Instagram  

Week Six, August 6th, Four Winds Cottage 

Resort joined the market with a chance to 

WIN a Tiki Boat Cruise on Lake Mani-

touwabing. Visitors donated non-perishable 

food items/personal items and cash dona-

tions for Parry Sound Harvest Share and 

names were entered into a draw. Winner of 

the cruise was Denny Knott. 

Week Seven, August 13th, Athena’s Lace Up 

to End Diabetes was well supported. Athena 

created and sold magnets for her little 6 yr 

old brother, Logan, who was diagnosed with 

Type 1 Diabetes this year. Athena sold all 

her magnets and raised $400. for team Lo-

gan’s Car Squad. The PS Harvest Share fund-

raiser was successful and extend ‘til the end 

of the season. 

Week Eight, August 20th, we welcomed  

musician Sully Burrows and vendor Rachael 

Duncan of Heart of Yolk introduced her bun-

ny “Peter” to market visitors. A couple new 

vendors join us– Muskoka Granola and Pivot 

Coffee Roastery.   

Week  Nine, August 27th, we partnered 

with PS Salvation Army Community & Family 

Services Back-to-School program with our 

“Fill A Back Pack” which was well received 

and carried over to our season finale. It was 

Blue Panda Lemonade’s last market for the 

season. 

 Week Ten, September 30th, End of Season 

Finale, Four Winds Cottage Resort returned 

with their Tiki Boat and raised $325. and 

172lbs of non-perishables for PS Harvest 

Share. The MLCA contributed an additional  

$250. towards Four Wind’s fundraiser. Julia 

Woltess was the winner of the boat cruise. 

The Back-to-School initiative was a huge 

success and the Whitestone McKellar Lions 

Club sold $42. in popcorn sales and 92 Nurs-

ing Station Raffle tickets.  

3 



Thanksgiving Market  

Minerva Park was beautifully 

decorated for the Thanksgiv-

ing Market with pumpkins, 

corn stalks, gourds, mums 

and filled to the brim with 60+ 

amazing vendors. 

Rescue 1 raised 206 lbs. of 

food/personal products and 

$815.10 in cash donations for 

Parry Sound Harvest Share– 

truly an amazing effort by 

everyone. The McKellar Vol-

unteer Firefighters would like 

to thank everyone who 

stopped by.  

Once again, our Fall Photo 

Booth was busy capturing 

family memories.  

Live music was enjoyed and 

provided by Phil Jefkins and 

The Arbour’s.  A BIG thank 

you to Phil, Janice, Jackie, Sul-

ly and The Rogerson’s for an 

entertaining season. 

The Moose on the Loose food 

did not disappoint!! Thank 

you Brian, Shannon, Kathy 

and Don for accepting our 

invitation to supply the mar-

ket with an abundance of de-

licious food options this year. 

The “McKellar Muncher “ was 

a crowd pleasurer.    

This summer we had the 

pleasure of meeting Vicky, a 

dedicated customer of the 

market and now a volunteer. 

Vicky spearheaded our Back- 

to-School “Fill A Back Pack”  

fundraiser plus donated two 

decorative pumpkins for our 

Thanksgiving Market and gen-

erously offered to supply the 

Christmas Market with two 

beautiful Christmas entrance 

baskets and four centerpieces 

for our dining tables.  

4 

It’s people like 

Vicky and her 

daughter, Danielle, 

that help provide 

our community 

with a fun, welcom-

ing shopping expe-

rience.  

Vicky’s, “Fill A Back 

Pack”, raised $645. 

plus 5 large totes 

full of school sup-

plies for Parry 

Sound Salvation 

Army Community 

and Family Services. 

A BIG shout out to 

our Volunteer Fire-

fighters, past and 

present, for gener-

ously donating their 

Saturday mornings 

to help our vendors 

set up,  put up 

signs, support and 

participate in fund-

raising efforts, tidy 

up the park and 

manage the parking 

lot– your communi-

ty spirit  is appreci-

ated.  

McKellar 150th  

Celebration  

In 2023 
For information  

contact: 

705.389.2228 



5 

Closing Remarks  

Christmas Market  

As we say goodbye to our thirteenth season, we would like to 

thank our dedicated volunteers, customers, vendors and musi-

cians for a memorable season. Together, we maneuvered a 

pandemic, new parking regulations 

and continue to grow despite ad-

versities.  

Mark your calendar– Summer 

2023 Market will reopen Canada 

Day, Saturday July 1st to Labour 

Day, 10am-1pm at Minerva Park, 

Thanksgiving Market-Thanksgiving 

weekend 10am-1pm at Minerva 

Park and the Christmas “Merry & Bright” Market Saturday, 

November 18th, 10am-1pm at the community centre.  

From all of us at The McKellar Market, 

we thank you for your support and 

look forward to serving you in 2023.  

Respectfully submitted by Jan Gibson  

Contact Us: 

701 Hwy.124, 

Box 69,  

McKellar, ON  

P0G 1C0 

Phone:  

705.773.9578 

Email: rjgibson2217@gmail.com  

Website: www.mckellar.ca 

 

The McKellar Market is where 

amazing products are bought 

and great friendships are made! 

Follow us on  
 

 

The Christmas Market was held Novem-

ber 12th at the community centre, 10-

1pm with over thirty-five vendors show-

casing theirs wares inside and out. Santa 

arrived at 11 and S’more kits were en-

joyed by all.  NEW this year, a festive 

campfire was created outside complete 

with a covered dining area for shoppers 

to enjoy. It was great to see so many peo-

ple come out and enjoy the day with us. 

We would like to thank the Library Staff 

for cohosting and welcoming our vendors 

and visitors into their space and to the 

public works staff for helping us prepare 

the community centre and council cham-

ber for the big day.  It was great to be 

back after a two year pandemic hiatus.  



Item 17.3



Item 17.4





_                                                                         
            

  
                                                                  

 
 
 

December 22, 2022 
 
Patrick Christie 
Parry Sound Area Planning Board 
1 Mall Drive, Unit 2  
Parry Sound, ON  
P2A 3A9 
 
via Email: psapb@vianet.ca  
 
 
Re: Consent Application – B19/2022 (Colbourne)  
 
 
Dear Patrick,  
 
Please be advised that all of the following conditions for the above noted Consent Application have 
been met.  
 

1. Payment of Parkland Fees;  

2. Verification from the Director of Operations, by way of staff report the two lots can 

accommodate an entrance in compliance with Municipal Standards;  

3. 911 Addressing; and  

4. Payment of all applicable planning fees.  

 
Regards,  
 
 
 
 
Ina Watkinson 
Clerk/Administrator 
Township of McKellar  
 
 

Item 17.5

Township of McKellar_______________________
701 Hwy #124, P.O. Box 69, McKellar, Ontario POG 1C0

Phone: (705) 389-2842
  Fax: (705) 389-1244

mailto:psapb@vianet.ca


Item 17.6





































?,i

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PARRY SOUND
RESOLUTION IN COUNCIL

DIVISION LIST

Councillor G.ASHFORD
Councillor J. BELESKEY
Councillor P. BORNEMAN
Councillor B. KEITH
Councillor D. McCANN
Councillor C^McDONALD
Mayor J. McGA^VEY

N0. 2022- i<?^

YES N0 DATE:December6,2022

MOVED BY:

;^^^^
^::

CARRIED:

SECONDED BY:

=s^^-
DEFEATED: Postponed to:

That Council hereby approves citizen/lay appointments to various Boards, Commissions
and Committees as identified in Schedule "A" attached.

rayor\Jan?ie McGarvey

Item 19.1



Schedule “A” to Resolution 2022 - 157 

2022-2026 Citizen/Lay Appointments to Boards, Commissions, Committees  

The following citizen/lay appointments are made to boards, commissions and committees for the 
Council term ending November 14, 2026 or until successors are appointed. 

 

Board/Commission/Committee Appointment  
   
1. Accessibility Advisory Committee 
 
 
 
 
2. Appeals & Adjudication 
- Fence Viewing; Property Standards 
 

Brianna Gagnon-Heil (The Friends), Tammy Gould 
(RISE - Resource Centre for Independent Living) 
Kathie Horne, Bill Liggins, Rebecca Jones,  
Kelsey Quesnelle 
 
John Este, Robert Messacar, Lee-Ann Turner 
 

 

3. Awards Advisory Council 
- Order of Parry Sound 
- future potential adjudication of Civic Scholarship  
 
4. Bobby Orr Hall of Fame Exhibition Ad hoc 
Advisory Committee 
 
 
5. Bobby Orr Hall of Fame Induction Committee 
 
 
6. Coat of Arms Ad hoc Committee 

Barbara Fisher, Mary Hachigian, Jim Marshall 
Lee-Ann Turner 
 
 
Peter Conacher, Bill French, Dave Garagan 
Delores McKay, Lisa Tabobondung,  
Brock Tudhope 
 
Rob Beaumont, Dave Garagan, Dave Gohier,  
Brad Horne, Mitch Vaudrie, Dave Weichel 
 
Anita Chechok, Iain Laing, Jim Marshall 
 

 

7. Committee of Adjustment Bob Farrow, Ted Knight, Ken Scriven,  
Bill Sheridan, Lee-Ann Turner 

 

 
8. Façade Improvement Program Review 
Committee 

 
Alex Distler, Kathy Dyer, Brenda Ryan 

 

 
9. Parry Sound Area Municipal Airport 

 
Bill Attwell, Bob Fisher,  

 

 
10. Parry Sound Downtown Business Association 
 

 
Bernice Anderson, Jess Cox, Tim Dunn,  
Meredith McCaffrey, Matt Meglio, Mary Ellen Swan,  
Doug Wilton 
 

 

11. Parry Sound Public Library Board  
 
 

Jonathan Baxter, Sandy Bishop, Stephen Heder, 
Alhan Rahimi, Karen Walker 

 

12. Waterfront Advisory Committee 
 
 

Anne Bossart, Bob Bowland, Bob Corrigan,  
Dan Glenney, Seanan Megyesi, Alana Torresan, 
Stefanie Veneranda 

 

   



Ẑt^iy
^ -3.{

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PARRY SOUND
RESOLUTION IN COUNCIL

DIVISION LIST

Councillor G. ASHFORD
Councillor J. BELESKEY
Councillor P. BORNEMAN
Councillor B. KEITH
Councillor D. McCANN
Councillor C^McDONALD
Mayor J. McGARVEY

N0. 2022

YES N0

- lb\
'022

CARRIED: DEFEATED: Postponed to:

That Council hereby approves appointments of members of Council and staffto various
Boards, Commissions and Committees as identified in Schedule "A" attached.

McGarvey



Schedule “A” to Resolution 2022 - 161

2022-2026 Council Appointments to Boards, Commissions, Committees 

The following Mayor/Council, Town of Parry Sound staff and where applicable - other municipality 
recommended appointments are made to boards, commissions and committees for the Council 
term ending November 14, 2026 unless governing legislation sets a different end term date.  

Board/Commission/Committee Appointment 

1. 9-1-1 Management Committee Fire Chief Dave Thompson 

2. Accessibility Advisory Committee Cllr. George Ashford, Cllr. Bonnie Keith 

3. Bobby Orr Hall of Fame Exhibition Ad hoc Advisory Committee Cllr. Chris McDonald

4. Civic Scholarship Committee Cllr. Bonnie Keith, Cllr. Chris McDonald, 
CAO Clayton Harris 

5. Coat of Arms Ad hoc Committee Cllr. Doug McCann, Mayor Jamie McGarvey 

6. Committee of Adjustment Cllr. George Ashford, Cllr. Bonnie Keith 

7. District of Parry Sound Home for the Aged (Belvedere) Cllr. Joe Beleskey, Cllr. Paul Borneman 

8. District of Parry Sound Municipal Association Cllr. Joe Beleskey (subject to agreement 
with The Archipelago) 

9. ICECAP Cllr. Paul Borneman,  
Cllr. Joe Beleskey (alternate) 

10. Lakeland Holdings Shareholder Board Mayor Jamie McGarvey,  
Cllr. Paul Borneman (alternate) 

11. North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit Board Mayor Jamie McGarvey  

12. Park to Park Trail Association Cllr. Joe Beleskey 

13. Parry Sound Area Chamber of Commerce Cllr. Joe Beleskey 

14. Parry Sound Area Industrial Park Board Cllr. George Ashford, Cllr. Paul Borneman, 
Cllr. Chris McDonald 

15. Parry Sound Area Municipal Airport Cllr. Paul Borneman 

16. Parry Sound Area OPP Detachment Board (formerly CPAC) Cllr. Bonnie Keith

17. Parry Sound District Emergency Medical Services Mayor Jamie McGarvey - Chair 
Advisory Committee 

18. Parry Sound District Social Services Administration Board Mayor Jamie McGarvey 

19. Parry Sound Downtown Business Association (DBA) Cllr. Chris McDonald 

20. Parry Sound Public Library Board Cllr. Doug McCann,  
Cllr. Tom Lundy – The Archipelago 
Mayor Susan Murphy – Carling 
Cllr. Joe Ryman – McDougall  



21. Provincial Offences Advisory Committee    Cllr. Bonnie Keith 

22. Waterfront Advisory Committee     Cllr. Bonnie Keith, Cllr. Doug McCann 

23. West Parry Sound District Museum    Cllr. Doug McCann 

24. West Parry Sound Economic Development Collaborative Mayor Jamie McGarvey,  
Stakeholder Board      Cllr. Chris McDonald (alternate) 

25. West Parry Sound Economic Development Collaborative  CAO Clayton Harris 
Steering Committee 

26. West Parry Sound Recreation & Cultural Centre Board  Mayor Jamie McGarvey,  
Cllr. George Ashford (alternate) 

           
           
   



Item 19.2







Item 19.3









Item 19.4





































 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Corporation of The Township of The Archipelago
Council Meeting

Agenda Number: 16.10.
Resolution Number 22-195
Title: Securing Canada's $1 Billion Investment in a Strengthened Freshwater Action

Plan
Date: Friday, December 16, 2022

Moved by: Councillor Cade Fraser
Seconded by: Councillor MacLeod

WHEREAS the Township of The Archipelago, as a member of the Great Lakes and St. Lawrence Cities
Initiative, supports: protecting source water, planning for climate change impacts and shoreline
resilience, ensuring safe and affordable water services for all our residents, and building up a
sustainable blue economy in the Great Lakes and St. Lawrence River Basin.

 

WHEREAS ensuring healthy communities and a strong economy for Canadians depend on securing
Canada’s source water, which includes addressing water quality issues, contaminants and pollution,
supporting biodiversity and reversing wetland and fish and wildlife habitat loss and improving
community knowledge to empower citizens to safeguard this essential resource.

 

WHEREAS a Freshwater Action Plan and the Great Lakes Protection Initiative it supported were first
announced in the 2017 Canadian federal budget with a $44.84 million investment over five years. 

 

WHEREAS the Freshwater Action Plan has combined science and action to address priorities in the
Great Lakes such as preventing toxic and nuisance algae, enhancing the resilience of coastal wetlands
in the Great Lakes, restoring Great Lakes Areas of Concern and supporting Canada’s commitments
under the Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement, among other priorities.

 

WHEREAS a commitment was made by the Liberal Party of Canada in the 2021 federal election to

Item 19.5



strengthen the Freshwater Action Plan with an historic investment of $1 billion over ten years to restore
and protect large lakes and river systems starting with the Great Lakes and St. Lawrence River Basin.

 

WHEREAS the federal government only committed $19.6 million in funding in the 2022 Budget for the
Freshwater Action Plan, falling short of the aforementioned commitment.

 

WHEREAS the United States has invested $1.8 billion in the Great Lakes Restoration Initiative (GLRI)
since 2017 and will see accelerated funding with the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act.

 

WHEREAS a 2018 University of Michigan study shows that for every dollar of federal spending on
GLRI projects between 2010 and 2016, yielded $3.35 in additional economic activity.

 

WHEREAS nearly half of Canada’s population lives in the Great Lakes and St. Lawrence River Basin,
a region that will continue to see accelerated growth, resulting in greater land and resource use
pressures that will further contribute to water availability and quality issues.

 

WHEREAS the Stockholm Resilience Centre recently identified the importance of wetlands as carbon
sinks and fresh water’s role in climate mitigation. 

 

WHEREAS the Great Lakes-St. Lawrence Collaborative outlined 30 recommendations to Environment
and Climate Change Canada as part of a ten-year, $2.2 billion Action Plan 2020-2030 to protect the
Great Lakes and St. Lawrence (Action Plan 2020-2030), addressing shoreline erosion, outdated
infrastructure, invasive species, exposure to toxins and beach contamination, following an 18-month
consultation with First Nations, NGOs, academics and other experts.

 

WHEREAS the recommendations outlined in Action Plan 2020-2030 should serve as the basis of
programming for strengthened federal action in the Great Lakes and St. Lawrence River Basin through
its strengthened Freshwater Action Plan. 

 

WHEREAS the newly established Canada Water Agency should play a role in accelerating the rollout
of funding made available through a strengthened Freshwater Action Plan.

 

WHEREAS Freshwater Action Plan funding should largely be directed to community groups, local

https://siwi.org/publications/essential-drop-to-net-zero-unpacking-freshwaters-role-in-climate-change-mitigation-report/


 
 
 

governments and First Nations to ensure that investments made will have the biggest local impact and
empower action at the local level, rather than being held back for federal administration and
operations. 

 

WHEREAS it is critical to implement a strengthened Freshwater Action Plan, including accelerating a
$1 billion over five years, and to creating a Canada Water Agency to consolidate and coordinate
federal water efforts and support provinces and territories in addressing systemic issues impacting the
viability of the Great Lakes and St. Lawrence River Basin and the communities dependent upon the
region’s source water.

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago calls on the federal
government to commit $1 billion in funding over five years for a strengthened Freshwater Action Plan in
Budget 2023.

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago calls on the federal government to
guide its Freshwater Action Plan funding to implement recommendations in the Action Plan 2020-2030.

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago calls on the federal government to
direct priority funding under the strengthened Freshwater Action Plan to projects in the Great Lakes
and St. Lawrence River Basin.

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago calls on the federal government to
make municipalities eligible for future funding in programs announced under the strengthened
Freshwater Action Plan.

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago directs its staff to submit this
resolution to the federal Deputy Prime-Minister and Minister of Finance; the Minister of Environment
and Climate Change; the Parliamentary Secretary to the Minister of Environment and Climate Change
(responsible for the Canada Water Agency), and local Member of Parliament, and the Great Lakes and
St. Lawrence Cities Initiative.

Carried



   2023 Jan 03 

1 
 

BELVEDERE HEIGHTS BOARD OF MANAGEMENT UPDATE FOR OWNER MUNICIPALITIES (JAN. 2023) 

The Belvedere Heights Board of Management (BoM) provides this update to all eight municipal councils owning the 

properties at 21 Belvedere including the Belvedere Heights (BH) 101-bed long term care facility and the 24-unit life 

lease building.  The plan to move BH to create a Campus of Care at the health centre was submitted in fall 2021 

and is still in the queue for review by the government.  For transparency, life lease owners were given advance 

notice of the future plans in summer 2021.  While most residents supposed that the changes would occur after 

they would leave life lease, several residents remain concerned and have reached out to the media and individual 

councillors. 

Facts About Life Lease 

• Life lease is a right to occupy a unit, there is NO ownership of part of a building or land. Relative real estate 

values have not applied to life lease sales as evidenced by the historical price per sq. foot over time. 

• Recognizing the existing lease agreement was silent on the issue of termination or sale of building and the 

rights of the residents, Belvedere Heights engaged legal support to create an addendum to the agreement 

that would protect the initial purchase price for their right to occupy if the building is sold in the future. 

The matter was presented in summer 2021 with encouragement that residents review and obtain legal 

advice before signing.  

• When the Campus of Care model is approved, at least three to five years will elapse (perhaps more) before 

current life lease holders would have to relocate.  No one will be “kicked out onto the street” (terms used 

in the media and opinions).   All remaining life lease holders will be given at least one year notice. 

• We are still very early in the entire process of the relocation BH.  The wording in the current occupancy 

agreement refers to market value and provides no option if the right to occupy life lease cannot be sold on 

the real estate market. If the life lease building is to be demolished after BH is relocated, the proposed 

addendum to the life lease agreements at least protects the purchase price. 

• In the fall of 2022, two units were vacated by the residents.  The BoM repurchased these units at a 

mutually agreeable price and both units have been converted into apartments at current rental rates.    

 

Campus of Care: Consolidation of Long Term Care in West Parry Sound 

The province has deemed West Parry Sound as an underserviced area for long term care (LTC) beds with an excess 

of a two year wait list for placement.  Government has estimated a 160-LTC-bed shortfall within this decade.  In 

2020, government began building new LTC capacity approving projects that were campus of care submissions.  In 

2021, BoM began discussions with the WPSHC/Lakeland that culminated in engaging an architect to create a vision 

for the campus of care, which was shared with the municipalities in Oct. 2021. 

The architect’s plan to build 160 new LTC beds adjacent the Lakeland LTC was bold and beautiful and the Ministry 

of Long Term Care was impressed by the concept of care and the visual.  A campus of care is the ideal model for 

LTC residents.  Enhancing care for our frail elderly is our top priority and we will be fair to the seniors living 

independently in life lease. 

Item 19.6



   2023 Jan 03 

2 
 

During the spring and summer 2021, the BoM municipal reps engaged with all eight member municipalities to 

support the campus of care model by ‘surrendering the right to manage’ the BH 101-LTC beds back to the Ministry.   

The Ministry could then issue a not-for-profit license to WPSHC/Lakeland to build the proposed 160-bed complex.   

By August 2021, all eight municipalities had passed a bylaw to support the campus of care as required by the LTC 

legislation when a district municipal home wishes to relinquish LTC beds.    The bylaw requested the Ministry to 

waive the five-year minimum notice in favour of expediting the new build. 

The required bylaws and BoM resolution were forwarded to the Ministry in Sept. 2021 and there has been no 

acknowledgement or written communication from the Ministry as of Dec 2022. 

The existing BH operations and facilities stay in place until the new build is ready for occupancy, which is still 

uncertain and could be many years away from completion. 

In Nov. 2022 we did receive confirmation that the existing management consulting services provided by 

WPSHC/Lakeland to BH would be replaced with an ongoing management services agreement that delegates all 

day-to-day management of the 21 Belvedere operations.  For example, our Administrator, Kami Johnson, has been 

and will continue to be an employee of WPSHC/Lakeland.   The management agreement is good news to allow us 

to continue to consolidate and coordinate LTC support services for West Parry Sound. 

Belvedere Heights is a district municipal home.  The eight municipalities jointly own and manage the building 
through an appointed board of management.  Councillors representing all municipalities sit on the Board and 
endeavour to ensure each municipality is current and in support of all actions.  



1 Beechwood Drive | Parry Sound, ON | P2A 1J2 

p. 705-746-7777 or 1-800-461-4464 (Français) 

www.psdssab.org | facebook.com/PSDSSAB 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

December 29, 2022 

 

RE: Resolutions Nominating Members to our Board 

 

Dear Mayors and Councils of the Municipalities of Carling, Whitestone, McKellar and McDougall, 

 

I am writing regarding the appointment of Board members to the District of Parry Sound Social 

Services Administration Board.   As per our correspondence of November 17, 2022, two (2) 

members must be appointed jointly from the councils of the municipalities in your Area for there to 

be representation on the DSSAB Board. 

 

As of today, I have received the following resolutions from Area 3: 

    

Township of Carling - 

Municipality of Whitestone - 

Township of McKellar Resolution appointing Morley Haskim 

Township of McDougall Resolution appointing Joel Constable  

    

We hope that Area 3 Municipalities are able to determine their representatives prior to our first 

Board meeting of the New Year which will be held at 6:30 PM on Thursday, January 12, 2023 via 

Zoom Video Conference.  

 

If the representatives are not able to be appointed jointly, they cannot be confirmed as DSSAB 

Board members.  However, they are welcome to attend our first Board meeting as members of the 

public. 

 

As well, a reminder that we will be holding our Board Introduction on Friday, January 27, 2023 at 

the Log Cabin Inn located at 9 Little Beaver Blvd. in Seguin Township. It is vitality important for 

all Board members to attend this all-day event as it will orient them on the operations of the 

DSSAB.   

 

Should you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to reach out to me at 705-746-7777 ext. 5290 

or via email at jharris@psdssab.org.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Jennifer Harris 

Administrative Officer  
 

* Whitestone confirmed appointment of Janice Bray (at their Dec 
13th meeting) via email - KB

Item 19.7

http://www.psdssab.org/
https://www.facebook.com/PSDSSAB
mailto:jharris@psdssab.org


 WHITESTONE McKELLAR LIONS CLUB  
 “We Serve Where We Live”  

December 31, 2022 
The Township of McKellar    
701 Highway 124 
McKellar, Ontario 
P0G 1C0 
 
This report outlines the activities of the Whitestone McKellar Lions Club in our community. As of this 
date, our club is comprised of 14 members who reside in The Municipality of Whitestone or The 
Township of McKellar. The Whitestone McKellar Lions Club is a member club of Lions Clubs 
International. 
 
Our club and its members serve our community in many different ways: 

 Administrating lotteries to raise funds for the Whitestone Nursing Station ($3500) and the 
upcoming 150th anniversary for McKellar Township. 

 Supporting local community programs including: 
o Whitestone Lake Central School – Bike Rodeo, Forest of Reading, Public Speaking 
o Hallowe’en Program 
o Christmas Hamper Program 

 Donating funds to local and non-local causes including: 
o Hurdville Community Hall 
o Whitestone Nursing Station 
o Ardbeg Community Hall 
o Whitestone Public Library and Technology Centre 
o Cuddle Cots (with McKellar FF Assoc’n) 
o Childhood Cancer 
o Lions Camp Dorset for dialysis patients and their families 
o Effective Speaking for Students 
o Guide Dogs of Canada 
o Spring Roadside Cleanup 

 
In addition to private donations, our club’s primary source of monies to fund our programs comes from 
bottle returns collected at the Auld’s Road Landfill in The Municipality of Whitestone.  
 
We encourage the Township of McKellar Council to keep the Whitestone McKellar Lions Club in mind 
when considering ideas and opportunities for serving needs in our community. We would also be open 
to revenue opportunities sourced in McKellar similar to our arrangement with the Municipality of 
Whitestone. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Joyce Campbell 
President, Whitestone McKellar Lions Club 

Item 19.8



Item 20.2





I spoke to Joe over the phone, the owners would prefer Madigan Lane

Island View Lane was previously Fire Route 102

Madigan is a historic family name on the road 

 

Item 20.3



Item 20.4



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
 

BY-LAW NO. 2023-05 
 
 

Being a By-law to amend By-law No. 95-12, with 
respect to lands legally described as PT LT 33 CON 6 

TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR (Hardie) 

 
 
WHEREAS By-law No. 95-12 regulates the use of land and the use and erection of buildings 
and structures within the Township of McKellar; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar deems it 
advisable to amend By-law No. 95-12 as hereinafter set forth; 
 
AND WHEREAS authority to pass such a by-law is provided by Section 34 of the Planning 
Act, R.S.O. 1990, Chapter P.13 and amendments thereto; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar enacts as 
follows:  
 
1.0 THAT ZONING BY-LAW NO. 95-12 IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1.1  Schedule ‘A’ (Sheet 1) to Zoning By-law 95-12, is hereby further amended, by 

rezoning the lands legally described as PT LT 33 CON 6 MCKELLAR TOWNSHIP OF 
MCKELLAR to Inland Development 2 (RR) as shown on Schedule ‘A’ attached 
hereto and forming a part of this By-law. 

 
2.0   Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto is hereby made part of this By-law. 
  
3.0 This By-law shall come into force and effect pursuant to the provisions of and 

Regulations made under the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990.  
 
READ a FIRST and SECOND time this 10th day of January, 2023. 
 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
David Moore, Mayor     Ina Watkinson, Clerk / Administrator 
 
 
 
READ a THIRD time and PASSED in OPEN COUNCIL this 10th day of January, 2023. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David Moore, Mayor 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Ina Watkinson, Clerk / Administrator  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 21.1



 

 

SCHEDULE ‘A’ 
 
1.0 This is Schedule ‘A’ to By-law 2023-05, being a portion of ‘Schedule A’ to  

Zoning By-law 95-12, passed this 10th day of January, 2023.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
David Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Ina Watkinson, Clerk / Administrator  

 



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 

BY-LAW NO. 2023-06 

 
Being a By-law to Set Tax Ratios for 

  Municipal Purposes for the Year 2023   
 

 

WHEREAS the Municipal Act 2001, Sec 308 (2)&(3) state that a set of tax ratios for 
every municipality shall be established in accordance with this section and that the tax 
ratios are the ratios that the tax rate for each property class must be to the tax rate for 
the residential property class where the residential property class tax ratio is 1; 

 
AND WHEREAS the tax ratios determine the relative amount of taxation to be borne by 
each property class; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act 2001, Sec 308(8) states that the tax ratio for a 
property class must be within the allowable range prescribed for the property class; 

 
AND WHEREAS Ontario Regulation 386/98 sets out Allowable Ranges for Tax Ratios; 

 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar 
hereby enacts as follows: 

 
1. For the taxation year 2023, the tax ratio for property in: 

a) the residential/farm property class is 1.0; 

b) the commercial property class is 1.1; 

c) the industrial property class is 1.1; 

d) the farmlands property class is 0.25; 

e) the managed forest property class is 0.25; 

f) the multi-residential property class is 1.1 
 

2. For the purpose of this By-law: 

a) the commercial property class includes all commercial office property, 
shopping centre property and parking lot property; 

b) the industrial property class includes all large industrial property; 
 

3. By-law No. 2022-10 is hereby repealed. 
 

4. This By-law shall come into force and take effect upon passage by Council. 
 
 

READ a FIRST and SECOND time this 10th day of January, 2023. 
 
 
 

    
David Moore, Mayor Ina Watkinson, Clerk 

 
 

READ a THIRD time and PASSED in OPEN COUNCIL this 10th day of January, 2023. 
 
 
 
  

David Moore, Mayor 
 
 
 
  

Ina Watkinson, Clerk 

Item 21.2



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCKELLAR 
 

BY-LAW NO. 2023-07 
 

Being a By-law to authorize the Borrowing of Money 
to Meet Current Expenditures of the Council of the 

Township of McKellar 

 
WHEREAS pursuant to Section 407(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25 as 
amended, at any time during a fiscal year, a municipality may authorize temporary 
borrowing, until the taxes are collected and other revenues are received, of the amounts that 
the municipality considers necessary to meet the expenses of the municipality for the year; 
 
AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 407(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25 as 
amended, except with the approval of the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal, the total amount 
borrowed at any one time plus any outstanding amounts of principal borrowed and accrued 
interest shall not exceed, 

a) From January 1 to September 30 in the year, 50 per cent of the total estimated 
revenues of the municipality as set out in the budget adopted for the year; and  

b) From October 1 to December 31 in the year, 25 percent of the total estimated 
revenues of the municipality as set out in the budget adopted for the year;  
 

AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 407(3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25 as 
amended, until the budget is adopted in a year, the limits upon borrowing under subsection 
(2) shall temporarily be calculated using the estimated revenues of the municipality set out in 
the budget adopted for the previous year;  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McKellar hereby 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. That the Head of Council and the Treasurer are authorized on behalf of the 

Municipality to borrow from time to time by way of promissory note or bankers’ 
acceptance from CANADIAN IMPERIAL BANK OF COMMERCE (“CIBC”) a sum or sums 
not exceeding the aggregate $800,000.00 to meet, until taxes are collected, the 
current expenditures of the Municipality for the year (including the amounts required 
for the purposes mentioned in subsection 407(1) of the Act) and to give to CIBC 
promissory notes or bankers’ acceptances, as the case may be, sealed with the 
corporate seal of the Municipality and signed by the Head of Council and Treasurer for 
the sums borrowed plus interest at a rate to be agreed upon from time to time with 
CIBC. 

 
2. THAT all sums borrowed pursuant to this by-law, as well as all other sums pursuant 

to the Act in this year and in previous years from CIBC for any purpose will, with 
interest thereon, be a charge upon the whole of the revenues of the Municipality for 
the current year and for all preceding years as and when this revenue is received. 

 
3. THAT the Treasurer is authorized and directed to apply in payment of all sums 

borrowed plus interest, all of the moneys collected or received on account in respect 
of taxes levied for the current year and preceding years or from any other source 
which may lawfully be applied for this purpose.  

 
4. THAT the Treasurer is authorized to furnish to CIBC a statement showing the nature 

and amount of the estimated revenues of the Municipality not yet collected and also 
showing the total of any amounts borrowed that have not been repaid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 21.3



 

 

5. THAT By-law No. 2022-01 is hereby repealed. 
 
 
 
READ a FIRST and SECOND time this 10th day of January, 2023. 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
David Moore, Mayor     Ina Watkinson, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
READ a THIRD time and PASSED in OPEN COUNCIL this 10th day of January, 2023. 
 
_________________________________ 
David Moore, Mayor 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Ina Watkinson, Clerk 


